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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “E Lighting”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In past financial year, E Lighting accomplished various major
achievements and marked new milestones. The Group has
successfully embarked on the international capital market after
its listing on the GEM of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 29
September 2014 (“Listing”). With its commitment to excellence and
enterprising spirit, the Group has continued to promote its business
development after the Listing. Despite the extremely challenging
business environment, the Group maintained a flexible and tailored
sales and marketing strategy to offer its consumers with diversified
and modern choices by accurately procuring the suitable products
for the domestic market, which will in turn reinforce E Lighting’s
leading market position.

With rising living standards, Hong Kong consumers’ expectation
on lighting and furniture products have developed beyond mere
practicality and durability. More customers are pursuing reputable
high-quality brands whilst shopping for these products. E Lighting
principally engaged to inject more high quality and fashionable
products to the local market. In past year, the Group introduced
5 world-renowned brands from Italy and Austria in order to cater
for various tastes and needs of consumers. The addition of the
new brands will strengthen the product portfolio of E Lighting so
as to enhance its market share by utilising the Group’s extensive
experience in the industry and its professional sales capability.

Being the most well-established retail chain of lighting products in
Hong Kong, E Lighting continued its efforts in the development of
its existing lighting product business, whilst proactively exploring
potential investment opportunities. In June 2015, the Group
successfully acquired a tableware and giftware supplier, Trendmall
Tableware. The acquisition has not only expanded the Group's
existing business portfolio, but also broadened its source of
income by diversifying into other businesses with growth potential.
Moreover, Trendmall Tableware happened to share the same
principles of the Group to offer tailor-made household products
and customised services to its customers.

E Lighting, a listed company with its business rooted in Hong Kong,
is devoted to social responsibility. During the Year, the Group
was honoured “Caring Company”, which has fully illustrated the
Group's corporate spirit to care for the community and reach out to
the underprivileged.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT E£E#®&E

Drawing on its competitive advantages including brand positioning,
business strategies, optimised store network and quality
management, the Group is now well-prepared to overcome any
future challenges. Looking forward, a revived economy is expected
to provide E Lighting with vast growth opportunities. The Group will
strive to maintain a streamlined business operation, while catering
for consumers’ specific needs and being responsive to market
changes. Leveraging the strong support of the capital market, our
own strengths, and the global trends of saving energy, protecting
the environment and pursuing a higher quality of life, the Group is
confident about its development in the future. We will continue to
maintain steady growth and to maximise returns for our investors.

Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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Dear Shareholders,

| present the first annual report of the Group since the successful
listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 29 September 2014.

The financial year ended 31 March 2015 was a year full of
challenges and opportunities for the Group. During the year, the
lighting and furniture industry experienced a difficult operating
environment and was faced with challenges such as slow recovery
of the global economy, the uncertainties of economic and political
condition in Hong Kong and the intensified competition in the
industry. However, with the successful listing of the Group in
2014, together with our increasing market recognition and stable
expansion of store network, we have successfully captured great
opportunities for development during the past year. Meanwhile,
we remained highly alert of the complicated and changing market
condition and made strategic adjustments in response to market
changes in a timely manner.

During the year, the Group’s turnover was approximately
HK$80,416,000, representing an increase of approximately 1.6%
as compared with that of last year. Gross profit decreased by
approximately 4.5% to HK$45,046,000. Hindered by the one-off
exceptional listing expenses, increase in rental expenses and staff
costs, the Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$12,697,000
for the year. Excluding such one-off exceptional listing expenses,
the Group’s adjusted loss was approximately HK$4,650,000.
During the year, the Group’s net assets increased by 149.9%,
from approximately HK$21,101,000 of last year to approximately
HK$52,738,000.

E Lighting proactively executed the expansion plan to expand the
retail floor areas by an additional 12,000 sq. ft. by 30 September
2016, which represents an average of additional 1,500 sq. ft.
quarterly. Since the Listing, E Lighting has successfully opened four
new stores, namely “UrbanLiving” in Shatin, “=83" in Mongkok,
“E Lighting” flagship store in Whampoa, Hung Hom and KARTELL
flagship store in Central. As at the date of this report, E Lighting
operates a total of 20 retail stores.
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CEQ'S STATEMENT T4 H &

The Group continues to focus on the development of its existing
business whilst looking for suitable investment opportunities to
expand and diversify the Group’s current business portfolio into
businesses with growth potential, thereby broadening its source
of income and enhancing the profitability of the Group. In June
2015, the Group successfully acquired a tableware and giftware
supplier, Trendmall Tableware. The Trendmall Tableware is mainly
engaged in tableware and giftware business and principally serves as
brand developer for its customers in the US and overseas markets
to provide their customers with value-added services and handle
their procurement of tableware and giftware. It operates its retail
business in Hong Kong with the “Trendmall Gallery LL%#4 &R "
trademark. The Group believes that the acquisition will help to
enhance the Group's competitiveness in the household products
market.

According to the latest housing policy, the government laid down
the goal to build approximately 480,000 public and private housing
units in the next 10 years in its Long Term Housing Strategy. An
estimate of approximately 48,000 private and public housing units
will be provided per annum. Growth in housing units will spur
sales in lighting and furniture industry which will in turn benefit
our business. Therefore, we have great confidence in our future
outlook.

The Group will reinforce its existing strengths through investments
in brand portfolio, retail network and human resources. It will also
strive to enhance its competitiveness, so as to rise to the challenges
ahead and capture any business opportunities to deliver maximum
return on shareholders’ investment.

| hereby express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, investors,
partners, staff and customers on behalf of the Group. E Lighting

will step forward with ambitious entrepreneurship to reward for the
continuous supports from all parties.

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

Since its establishment in 2003, E Lighting is principally engaged
in the sale of quality lighting and designer label furniture products
from all over the world and becomes the most well-established
retail chain of lighting products in Hong Kong. The Group was listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 29 September 2014. Since
its Listing, E Lighting has maintained steady business development
as well as proactively executing the retail network expansion and
business diversification strategy to fulfill the commitments made to
investors.

Expansion of Retail Floor Area

As a local enterprise with its business based in Hong Kong, the
Group pays close attention to the market change and unique
needs of different districts in Hong Kong. The Group is dedicated
in expanding business in different regions in order to increase the
coverage of its lighting retailing network. Since its Listing, E Lighting
has successfully opened 3 retail stores, including “UrbanLiving”
at Shatin, “=H8BA"” at Mongkok and “E Lighting” flagship store
at Whampoa, Hung Hom. As at the date of this report, E Lighting
operates a total of 20 retail stores.

Moreover, the new KARTELL flagship in Central, a high-end prime
area, started operating in June 2015. The superior modern products
provided by E Lighting are expected to cater to the consumers’
pursuit of quality life and unique style. Another store, located at
E-Max, Kowloon Bay, is scheduled to open around August 2015.
The launch of new store is expected to further enhance the market
share of E Lighting. Retail network expansion is still a major part
in the future plans of E Lighting. E Lighting will continue to select
potential shopping districts which are desirable for its business
model and positioning, in order to enlarge its market share.

Marketing and Promotion of Own Branding of
Trademarks

The Group possesses one of the most extensive retail networks of
lighting products in Hong Kong. Apart from the trade name of E
LIGHTING as its lead branding, the Group is eagerly developing a
multi-branding business model for the retail chain by selling lighting
products of various brands and styles in order to cater to different
customer needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Ertmm Rk o247

The Group is currently the designated or authorised distributor
in Hong Kong of lighting and furniture products from over 30
international brands and designer labels, including well-known
European brands such as ARTEMIDE, KARTELL and TOM DIXON.
The Group also maintains a good business relationship with
PANASONIC.

After Listing, E Lighting is well-recognised and has received much
attention from media and investors. The Group’s unique business
philosophy and outstanding business performance are widely
appreciated. During the period under review, E Lighting was
consecutively awarded “The Listed Enterprise Excellence Award”
by Capital Weekly and “Job Market Employer of Choice Award”
by Job Market. E Lighting has also been awarded the “Caring
Company” logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
(HKCSS), recognising its on-going commitment in corporate social
responsibility activities, as well as its efforts in demonstrating a
commitment to the well-being of the community, its employees and
the environment.

Solicit New Incoming Brands to Expand Product Range
E Lighting is always devoted to inject more high-quality and
fashionable product choice to the local market. Therefore, the
Group has introduced 5 world-renowned brands from Italy and
Austria in order to cater for various taste and needs of consumers.
Introduction of new brands is planned to strategically strengthen
the product portfolio of E Lighting so as to enhance its market
share by fully utilising E Lighting’s rich experience in the industry
and its professional sales capability.

Apart from the ambitious expansion of its retail network, the
acquisition of tableware and giftware supplier, Trendmall
Tableware, is expected to diversify the Group’s business portfolio
and enhance its competitiveness within the market of household
products. Trendmall Tableware operates its retail business in
Hong Kong under the trade mark of “Trendmall Gallery [LI5#4E)E
g8” which offers a full range of premium tableware and giftware
products and it is also known for its customised and personalised
services to its customers. As a result of the acquisition, the Group
will have an enlarged business scope and more attractive value
propositions to its customers which will better meet the market
demand in Hong Kong.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Ertmm&k 247

Future Outlook

With increasing housing demand and Hong Kong citizens’
growing attention to home living, E Lighting is afforded with
new opportunities in its various lines of business. It plans to open
more retail stores across Hong Kong by 30 September 2016, if not
sooner, to increase its retail floor area by an addition of 12,000 sq.
ft. As the construction of new towns in Hong Kong commences
successively, the Group expects the flourishing residential market in
Hong Kong will drive demand for lighting and household products.

While proactively expanding its sales channels, E Lighting is looking
to further diversify and strengthen its business and brand portfolios
by leveraging its recognised agility and market reactiveness. Due to
the rising prevalence of small to medium-sized residential units in
Hong Kong, small lighting and household products are becoming
the preferred choices. Going forward, the Group will consider
introducing more small lighting products and household products
to accommodate the changing market environment.

E Lighting believes that its core business will benefit from
consumer'’s appetite of fashionable products. Therefore, the Group
will continue to source more international brands of home décor
so as to bring diversified products with trendy and special design
styles. On brand selection, E Lighting will introduce more premium
brands with a key focus on appearance and quality in light of the
actual needs of Hong Kong market.

Furthermore, thanks to the rising environmental awareness,
E Lighting is positive of the future development of LED. The
management will continue to monitor the development of LED
segment and the latest LED technology, promote LED products and
develop LED specialty stores and develop marketing strategies based
on the latest trends.

E Lighting will commit to grasping the emerging opportunities
within the market of lighting and household products; proactively
establishing retail stores in different areas in Hong Kong; offering
more quality choices to customers, so as to consolidate the leading
position of E Lighting.
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Financial Review

Turnover

The turnover of the Group increased from approximately
HK$79,158,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$80,416,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015,
representing an increase of approximately 1.6%. The increase was
mainly attributable to the turnover generated from expansion of
retail floor area in New Territories and Kowloon. Such increase was
affected by the economic and political uncertainty in Hong Kong
during the second half of the financial year. Lighting products have
continued to be the core product of the Group.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2015
was approximately HK$45,046,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 4.5% as compared with that of the preceding year.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales and gross
profit margin in the second half of the financial year.

Overall gross profit margin slightly decreased from approximately
59.6% for the year ended 31 March 2014 to approximately 56%
for the year ended 31 March 2015. Consumer sentiment was
negatively impacted by the economic and political uncertainty in
Hong Kong during the second half of the financial year. The Group
have adjusted the product mix and sales discounts to accommodate
the changing market environment, resulting in decrease in gross
profit margin.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 March 2015 was approximately HK$36,824,000, representing
an increase of approximately 24.6% as compared with that of the
preceding year. Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
rentals for retail outlets and related expenses, staff costs (including
salaries and sales commission paid to salesperson), electronic
payment charges and depreciation. The increase was primarily due
to the increase in rental expenses and staff costs.

Administrative Expenses and Listing Expenses

The Group’s administrative and other expenses for the year ended
31 March 2015 was approximately HK$20,570,000, representing
an increase of approximately 103.7% as compared with that of the
preceding year. Administrative and other expenses primarily consist
of rentals for office premise and warehousing facilities, staff costs
(including salaries paid to administrative staff and emoluments to
directors) and the one-off exceptional listing expenses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, one-off exceptional listing
expenses of approximately HK$8,047,000 was incurred (2014:
HK$2,758,000).

Administrative and other expenses (exclusive of listing expenses)
increased by approximately 70.6%, primarily due to the increase in
rental expenses and staff costs.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

To illustrate the profitability of the Group’s operation, the one-off
exceptional listing expenses were excluded to arrive at the adjusted
profit/(loss) for the year as set out below.

HE-_ZT-AF=A=1+—HLLFE —KM4¥F
REIE TR X4 7%8,047,000/8 L (= F — I
% : 2,758,000/ 7T) °

TBRREMFES (MK ETER) ET714970.6% -
T2ANEERA R E TRAIEIFTE

FREF,(BR)
RERARNEEXBOENEES - EETUA TS
HFEREABERN, (BB RESIR —RIEIEL
BMLEWRAX -

—E-HF —T-mEF

2015 2014

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Profit/(Loss) for the year FrmFl, (Ei8) (12,697) 5,857

Add: Listing expenses e B 8,047 2,758

Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year FRERERF,(BR) (4,650) 8,615
Adjusted earnings/(loss) per share RARSRERN,(HE)

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — R R s (L) (1.32) 2.87

As one-off exceptional listing expenses of approximately
HK$8,047,000 were charged, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$12,697,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014 profit of approximately HK$5,857,000). After excluding the
above mentioned one-off exceptional listing expenses, the Group’s
adjusted loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$4,650,000.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save for those disclosed in this Report, there were neither significant
investments held as at 31 March 2015 nor material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2015.

On 4 June 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Top Investor Global Limited and its subsidiaries
("Target Group”).
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Save for those disclosed in this Report, there is no plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this Report.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
6.4 times (2014: 2.2 times). The increase of current ratio was
due to the significant increase in cash and bank balances from
approximately HK$4,087,000 as at 31 March 2014 to approximately
HK$22,153,000 as at 31 March 2015. It was mainly arising from
the net proceeds from the Group’s shares listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group closely monitors the cash flow position to ensure that
the Group has sufficient working capital available to fulfill its
operational requirement. The Group takes into account the trade
receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances, administrative
and capital expenditures to prepare cash flow forecast to forecast
the Group’s future liquidity.

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. Total
equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$52,738,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2014
HK$21,101,000).

On 4 June 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,717,000 in connection with
the acquisition of Target Group. The convertible bonds will be
matured in 2018.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank borrowings
over total equity, was nil as at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil), as the
Group financed the operations from internally generated funds
and advance from a controlling shareholder, and did not raise any
external debt financing during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and Renminbi,
hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. We are mainly
exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of the Euro and Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The Directors
are of the view that the transactional exposure of the Group in
currencies other than the functional currencies is maintained at an
acceptable level.

Charges on Group Assets
As at 31 March 2015, there is no charges on the Group’s assets
(2014 Nil).

Segment Information

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group principally
operates in one business segment, which is the sale of lighting
products and household furniture in Hong Kong.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2014: Nil).

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2015 amounted to HK$650,000 (2014: Nil).

Employee Information

Total remuneration of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 (including (i) Directors’ emoluments, (ii) salaries to staff and
(iii) MPF contributions) was approximately HK$15,495,000 (2014:
HK$12,098,000). Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
average number of staff during the year and staff salaries.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 62 employees (2014: 50
employees).
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Comparison Between Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress

The following is a comparison of the Group’s business plan as set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 September 2014 (the
"Prospectus”) with actual business progress for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Actual business progress up to
31 March 2015
BEE-Z-RF=A=+-—HEREKER

Business plan up to 31 March 2015

as set out in the Prospectus
BIAERERTEE—E—HAF=A=1+—HNEKTE
Expansion of retail floor area (including LED specialty stores,
lighting stores, lighting & furniture combined stores)
ﬁfi%@ﬁﬁ%@%ﬁwéﬁﬁ\@%Exﬁﬁﬁiﬂ
=i

— explore and identify new districts suitable for new retail
outlets

- SXEPEEEHRNTERENIITLR

The Group has successfully identified five suitable retail
outlets in Shatin, Mongkok, Whampoa, Kowloon
Bay and Central, and in the process of exploring and

identifying new districts suitable for new retail outlets

REEEKNLPH  HA - & AERERFIRAR
MERFEEEER  WEBESKERYEHGHRNTE
R BT R

The Group has sped up its expansion plan and has
incepted tenancy agreements with those five landlords,

— negotiate and incept tenancy agreements to enable the
anticipated expansion of floor area by an additional

3,000 sq. ft. which will increase the floor areas of over 7,500 sq. ft.
- BLTRERIEANEESN3,000F FRIEAMERE Y MELHE in aggregate
thi AEBDMRETRERAS - BZAMEHETAILME

i - BEHEE7,500F 5 ROEEETE

The two new retail outlets at Shatin and Mongkok were
operated in December 2014
DHEEEAMENEHEN2014F12 AEXEE

— renovation and furnishing of new retail outlets

- RERHHHTERE

The new retail outlet at Whampoa was operated in
January 2015
EHFIEHDR2015F1 AIEXEE

As at 31 March 2015, three new retail outlets,
approximately 5,000 sq. ft. floor area in aggregate,
were operated

RZZE—RF=ZA=+—H  =Z@FEHS£45,000F
FREE@ED EXEE

The new retail outlet at Central was operated in June
2015
FIRFTEME R2015F6 A IEX &8

The design of the new retail outlet at Kowloon Bay
is under progress and it will be operated in around
August 2015
BEVEHTIE 8 IEETTRRAT T - TEAHIN 20158 ALERZ
8
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Business plan up to 31 March 2015 Actual business progress up to
as set out in the Prospectus 31 March 2015
BINBERERTEZE-Z2-HAF=ZA=ZT-BNXKFE EE-—T-AF=ZA=+-—BEBRXKER

Marketing and promotion of our own branding of trademarks

Z R IEER I A B

— launch media advertising and promotion in newspaper, The Group has launched advertisement and promotion in

magazine, etc newspaper and magazine to promote its own branding
- HHERBESURNGRE RESFSETEE of trademarks in the market
Z!K% ERIHRE RMGEETERAIRMENTISHERE &

Solicit new incoming brands to expand product range

FEEEFT A du HE LA 95 70 2 i AR 7

— probe and explore further new brands of potential The Group has introduced 5 world-renowned brands
- PeksIKELZRENFmE from Italy and Austria and is in the process of probing

and exploring new brands of potential
A& 3 ASERAEAF « AFNERAS R
WHEEYE RS KAE N mE

Position ourselves to capture LED market
TELEL A ZHELED T

— monitor latest development of policies for replacing The Group is monitoring the latest development of these
Incandescent Light Source with LED policies N

- EBERGHULEDRE AR RBERN SN ER AREEEAEERARABRRNRNER

— expand our Panasonic LED product range The Group is negotiating with the supplier to expand the

- I MIAPanasonic LEDE fhiAAY Panasonic LED product range

7N £ (8] 1F 75 B4 i R 8 DASE JNPanasonic LEDE mia R

Strengthen logistics management

INE D &

— implement new technological system ware for point-of The Group is in the process of implementing the new
sgle |nventory monitoring for new rgtail outlets technologlcal system ware

- BRHEERENHENHFEEREmIRIMA RNEE EE BRI R4t

- explore and identify new suitable warehousing facilities  The Group has incepted tenancy agreements with

- EBRUAEEEMNFEFERE landlords to increase approximately 7,000 sq. ft.

warehousing facilities and it was operated in January
2015 and April 2015.

AREBE D BT ATV EEHAEILINA7,000F 77 RE R ##
& - WH20159F1 A K%2015F4 A EEE

The Group is in the process of exploring and identifying
new suitable warehousing facilities

AEBETEESKEYEE BN FRE

The principal risks and uncertainties in implementation of the Group’s business objectives are the failure to implement the
expansion plan successfully. As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group planned to expand the retail floor area in Hong Kong
by approximately 12,000 sq. ft. by 30 September 2016. Should the expansion plan be affected by the uncertain economic
and political outlook in the Hong Kong market unexpectedly, the Group’s expansion plan may be adversely affected. The
Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may change or modify plans against the changing
market condition to attain sustainable business growth of the Group.
BiASEEER B ENE 2R NI EEEZ/RE WDJaEM)%%EEJrEU MINBREIZPAIEE - REBABE_T
—RNFRLA= +EHIJB’\E/%?)%3—EZ’J12 000 F 5 REEBEEE © & T);%%E%‘Jréﬂ%fﬁl\im%ﬁ%}%rh%Tﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ&/@%&ﬁ
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing EHFBRERAE

The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the ZARRIBIBEERITHIRMDANERTEIRNTEFEE
Company under the placing were approximately HK$33.5 million. #3533 5B &% T - R IR BRER T2
We have adjusted the use of proceeds in the same proportion as [l ELFIFAEEFTSRIER AR ©

shown in the Prospectus.

An analysis of the utilisation of the actual net proceeds and the ERMERBFHEABRMHEE_T—HF=H

unused amount as at 31 March 2015 is set out below: = +—BHERFASESITOT
Utilised Unused
amount as at amount as at
Net 31 March 31 March
proceeds 2015 2015
HE-Z—1F HE-ZF—IF
Fri8 I8 =B=+—H =B=+—H
FEE 2B ANIE REVHRRIE
Use of proceeds HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8RB A®E FHET FET FHET

a) Expansion of retail floor area by — a) #&#£4712,000F 5 R
approximately 12,000 sq. ft. TEEEEE 28,740 15,370 13,370

b) Marketing and promotion of our b) & 4 & #EE B

own branding of trademarks EEAEEERE 2,138 440 1,698
) Strengthen logistics management c¢) MN3&%7% &R 2,309 80 2,229
d) Working capital and other d) EEE S MEM—K

general corporate purpose NSINEEEES 342 332 10
Total et 33,529 16,222 17,307

The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing FREEHFAERIEFHECIEATEERFEATS
deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong. FERRERTT o
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the chairman
of the Board and head of human resources department. Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu is responsible for the business development, operations
and business expansion plans and human resources activities of the
Group. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the younger brother of Mr. Hui Kwok
Wing and Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond.

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu has over 16 years of business management
experience and obtained a Bachelor of social sciences degree from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, aged 52, was appointed as
an executive Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is one of the founders and chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is responsible for the
business development, operations and devising market strategy
and business expansion plans of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is the younger brother of Mr. Hui Kwok Wing and the
elder brother of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond has over 20 years of experience in
lighting and furniture retails business in Hong Kong and obtained
a Bachelor of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1985 and a Master of design degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010.

Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen (“Mr. Chou”), aged 52, was
appointed as an executive Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Chou is
one of the founders of the Group and responsible for the business,
operations and overall strategic planning and business expansion
plans of the Group.

Mr. Chou has over 11 years of experience in lighting and furniture
retails business in Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
commerce from McMaster University of Canada in June 1987.
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Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, aged 53, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2015. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is chief creative
officer of the Group and responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the elder brother of Mr. Hui
Kwok Keung Raymond and Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing has over 22 years experience in concept
creation, product design, design management and retail business
management and obtained Bachelor of arts degree in industrial
design from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1989.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung”), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Chung is responsible for providing independent judgment on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor’s degree (honours) in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and
a Master's degree in international business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 1998.

Mr. Chung became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom in November 1999.

Mr. Chung has around 25 years of experience in accounting,

taxation and finance and is currently the chief financial officer of a
private group.
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Mr. Leung Wai Chuen (“Mr. Leung”), aged 49, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Leung is responsible for providing independent judgment on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s degree in social sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in December 1989, a Master’s degree in
business administration jointly awarded by the University of Wales
and the University of Manchester in July 2001 and a Master’s
degree in business (logistics management) from Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University) in
September 2007.

Mr. Leung is a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively.

Mr. Leung has over 24 years' experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial matters. He
worked for and held senior positions in various listed companies in
Hong Kong and was responsible for their finance, accounting and
company secretarial functions. Mr. Leung is the company secretary
of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited since July 2013, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1271).

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (“"Ms. Yeung"”), aged 50,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
11 September 2014. Ms. Yeung is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the issue of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Yeung obtained a Bachelor of arts degree in retail marketing
with honours from the Manchester Metropolitan University in the
United Kingdom in June 1994. She pursued her further study on
legal course and obtained a Diploma in legal practice from the
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in July
1998.

Ms. Yeung became a qualified solicitor of Hong Kong in December
2000.
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Ms. Yeung has over 14 years of experience in legal field in private
practise working with various law firms in Hong Kong. She is
currently a legal consultant of Messrs. Wong & Wong Solicitors
since July 2012. Ms. Yeung is currently an independent non-
executive director of Success Universe Group Limited (stock
code: 487, formerly known as Macau Success Limited) and Dejin
Resources Group Company Limited (stock code: 1163), both
companies whose issued shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung is currently also an independent
non-executive director of Merdeka Resources Holdings Limited,
which is listed on GEM (stock code: 8163). Ms. Yeung was also an
independent non-executive director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited
from January 2011 to July 2014, which is listed on the GEM (stock
code: 8019).

Senior Management

Mr. Wong Peng Lin ("Mr. Wong"), aged 42, is the operation
manager of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 1 December
2003. He is primarily responsible for supervising the day to day
operation of the retail stores in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has over 10
years of experience in lighting retail business in the Group.

Mr. Chang David (“Mr. Chang”), aged 45, is the business
development manager of the Group. Mr. Chang joined the Group
on 3 October 2012, he is primarily responsible for overseeing the
business development of the Group in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang is
also responsible to oversee compliance with safety requirements
of all lighting and electrical products offered for sale at the retail
stores, monitor the latest development on safety requirements and
to enhance closer communications between us and the suppliers
in respect of the safety and certification requirements for lighting
and electrical products in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang has over 15 years
of experience in lighting business in Hong Kong. Prior to joining
the Group in October 2012, Mr. Chang worked as sales supervisor
from 1997 to 2008 and sales manager from 2008 to 2012 at Rio
Industrial Limited.
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Ms. Lam Yi Shun (“Ms. Lam”), aged 30, is the human resources
manager of the Group. Ms. Lam is responsible for overseeing the
human resource and administrative activities of the Group.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree in human resource
management from the University of Northumbria in England in July
2009 through long distance learning course. Ms. Lam has over 6
years of human resources experience. Prior to joining the Group
on 15 October 2013, she had worked in the human resources
department for a number of listed and multinational companies.

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (“Mr. Lam”), aged 32, is the deputy financial
controller and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam joined the
Group on 27 June 2014, he is primarily responsible for overseeing
the financial and daily secretarial matter of the Group.

Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of business administration (honours)
in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2005 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since September 2008. He has around 9 years
of experience in accounting, auditing, company secretarial and tax
consultancy field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and enhance its corporate value. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules (the “CG Code"”). To the best knowledge of the Board, the
Company had complied with the code provisions in the CG Code
since the date of listing and up to 31 March 2015 (the “Listing
Period”).

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). No
director has dealt in the shares of the Company during the Listing
Period.

Board of Directors

Composition of the Board of Directors

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (appointed on 26 February 2014)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (appointed on 26 February 2014)
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (appointed on 26 February 2014)
Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Chung Wai Man (appointed on 11 September 2014)

Leung Wai Chuen (appointed on 11 September 2014)
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (appointed on 11 September 2014)

Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
the overall business plans and strategies of the Group, develop
and implement the corporate governance function, monitor
the implementation of these policies and strategies and the
management of the Company. The Group has an independent
management team, which is led by a team of senior management
with substantial experience and expertise in the Group’s business
and the Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing the Group’s policies and strategies.
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Board Meetings and Board Practices EESESRRETEER

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other REBAQATHNATER  AREZEEAURFEE
means of electronic communication in accordance with the @ BEMEFEREHNETEE  FAEES
Company'’s articles of association. All minutes of the Board @EHMEHTHBRADFMbITHAEETSE
meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered  EBRIEIENEHAIRE ©

by the Board and the decisions reached.

During the Listing Period, the Board held one irreqular executive R FHHIME 2R T— K ATHHTESS
Board meeting, one irregular Board meeting and two regular Board & - — X T TEHEF@EMMATHEESE -

meetings. Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows: UTREEELELENFS

Attendance
Executive Directors
HITES
Hue Kwok Chiu (appointed on 26 February 2014) 4/4
HFREN(EAR-F—WE—H -+ H)
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (appointed on 26 February 2014) 4/4
BT (AR -FE—WWE—H =+ H)
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (appointed on 26 February 2014) 4/4
MEC(ZEAR=-F—WF=_A=+~H)
Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015) N/A
FRE(EARZE—AFANATNH) A3 A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Chung Wai Man (appointed on 11 September 2014) 3/3
BEX(EAR-FE—EFENA+—H)
Leung Wai Chuen (appointed on 11 September 2014) 3/3
RER(ZEFR-F—WENA+—H)
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (appointed on 11 September 2014) 3/3

BRE(ZER —F—FNHA+—H)

In addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board HBEZeTHI@HIN  EES T FHPEFTIE
met with all of the independent non-executive Directors without iﬂff%%ﬁ/\\ig TE-_AEYEFAHITES
the presence of the executive Directors in February 2015. HIERTRITEE -
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term.

Each of the executive Directors namely, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, Mr.
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond and Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen, has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
fixed term of two years from 11 September 2014, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
written notice or payment in lieu to the other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of
two years from 11 September 2014, which will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ written notice or
payment in lieu to the other party.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Directors, has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term
of two years from 19 June 2015, which will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ written notice or
payment in lieu to the other party.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of article 83 of the articles of association
of the Company, the Directors shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of members after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to article 84 of the articles
of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout
the meeting at which he retires.

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors to
comply with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. Furthermore,
among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung
and Mr. Leung have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In accordance to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors the written confirmation of
his/her independence. The Company, based on such confirmation,
considers Mr. Chung, Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Listing
Period, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Hue Kwok
Chiu and the office of the chief executive officer of the Company
is performed by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. The code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Director and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business/
functions, while reserving certain key matters in making strategic
decision for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions to management, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management need to report
back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

Continuing Professional Development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
shall participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company has
arranged and/or introduced some Director’s training courses and
has provided monthly financial highlight, business update of the
Group and training materials for the Directors to develop and
explore their knowledge and skills.

All Directors during the Listing Period have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers
of the Company that may arise out in the corporate activities which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board on 11 September 2014 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung. The other members are Mr.
Chung and Ms. Yeung. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include the review of the Group’s financial reporting process and
the internal control systems of the Group.

EERERBECER
ARFCLHEERR - REXEDPAELR
ZHEEERARASRBE ERTHI R
FREERERE - WHEFEEEEARTA
BREBHBFETRT

E5g
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The Audit Committee had reviewed the consolidated results of the BEZZEEeHEEED RN AEEHE—_E—1
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 with the management 4= A Z+—E¢¢r2£? ¥E AURREB
and is of the view that such results complied with the applicable & TABEAETEE © AIZER LETHREZR
accounting standards, the requirements under the GEM Listing E&Eﬁﬁmﬁﬁ,ﬁ&xﬁ TREEHIAE IR -
Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures had been made.
Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Listing Period. BZZEZEE@N FHHEETTMAEE @810
Details of the attendance of members of the Audit Committee BZZEE@eEHERMNEFNT
meeting are as follows:
Members Attendance
8 %
Leung Wai Chuen (Chairman) (appointed on 11 September 2014) 2/2
PEF(EE)NEARZFE—TFAA+—H)
Chung Wai Man (appointed on 11 September 2014) 2/2
BEEX(ZEAR=E—WEAA+—H)
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (appointed on 11 September 2014) 2/2

BRE(ZEEAR—F—MFAHT—H)
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Listing Period:

(@) reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2014 and nine months
ended 31 December 2014;

(b) reviewed the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

(c) approved the remuneration and the appointment and the
terms of engagement of the external auditor; and

(d) reviewed the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of audit process in accordance with
applicable standards.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chung.
The other members are Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management and to make recommendation to the Board on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Listing
Period to review the remuneration packages of all Directors and
employees of the Company. Details of the attendance of the
members of the Remuneration Committee meeting are as follows:
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Members Attendance
8 i
Chung Wai Man (Chairman) (appointed on 11 September 2014) 11

EREX(FRE)NEARE—WFELA+T—H)

Leung Wai Chuen (appointed on 11 September 2014)
RER(ZER-FE—WWEAA+—H)

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (appointed on 11 September 2014)
BRE(ZEAR=ZE—WENLA+—H)
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Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The remuneration payable to the employees includes salaries and
allowances. The Group's remuneration policies are formulated
based on the performance of individual employees and are reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also
provide a discretionary bonus to employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the remuneration
policy with regard to the remuneration package of the executive
Director is to enable the Group to retain and motivate the executive
Director by linking his compensation with performance as measured
against corporate objectives achieved. The executive Director is
entitled to the remuneration packages including basic salaries and
discretionary bonuses.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by all shareholders by way of written
resolution on 11 September 2014. The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group (the
"Eligible Participant”) and to promote the success of the business
of the Group.

The Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to the Eligible Participant
to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The Company believes that by offering the Eligible Participants a
shareholding stake in the Company, the interests of the Eligible
Participants and the Company become aligning and thereby the
Eligible Participants have additional incentives to improve the
Company’s performance.

Nomination Committee

The Board is empowered under the Company’s articles of association
to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
on or, as an additional member of the Board. Qualified candidates
will be proposed to the Board for consideration and the selection
criteria are mainly based on the assessment of their professional
qualifications and experience. The Board selects and recommends
candidates for directorship to the shareholders having regards to
the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Group’s
business.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

EERSREEABZHFMWBR

FEfT BB 2 N B & SORRE - NEE Z 5
BRENEREENRRET - WEHmT - ]
BAKEZEFRES - AEBEIRAEREE M
BISTEALE RN EHAEEERNAE - BREAH
TEEFTWEGERRNEIZEN  EREAKE
AR EHFERIE (AR EKRNEE B REE)H
W ARBRHBTES - RITEFTOREE
BeRELTHE RBBRANFHES -

ARBIEBER S ([BREE ) h2RRE
RZZE—FAA T+ BRBEERBRRMN -
BRERT 8 IR A B E IR B AR RIS 23
BEIRX - EREA S E AR R EREFH
AR RAAEERE (ZBEFE)  EF &6
AR DR ABR - HER - RE R
F - BaxBHImRsHER((AER2EE )R
HERINZRE) DA S HE B A SR B TS B (548 o

EERRBREEC2EDIE  RRZEZ
FEFEHARBARRBR N ZBERETEERS
B -

ARBBEANAERALRERARBRE - £46
BRMATEARBRNNEETHEE - A EEAE
BATEEARNB NESARRNERR -

REEES

REALFMEMERMAR  EESAEZEER
AL REFNAMEESHRE ZRIAFRITIENX
B - AEREEANBREEZEEETEER  HER
EXBINRENEXEELRERSE -EFERN
ZREAAKERG 2 RERTER - E
RABREBFREALTIES -



The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September 2014
with written terms of reference, which were revised on 19 June
2015, in compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and
is chaired by Ms. Yeung. The other members are Mr. Chung and
Mr. Leung. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board Diversity Policy and aims to set the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.

EO Compliance Committee

The Electricity Ordinance (“EQ"”) compliance committee of the
Company (the "EO Compliance Committee”) was established by
the Board on 11 September 2014. The EO Compliance Committee
currently comprises two executive Directors and one independent
non-executive Director and is chaired by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond. The other members are Mr. Chou and Mr. Chung. The
primary duties of the EO Compliance Committee are to oversee
and monitor the Group’s compliance of EO and other relevant
regulations through regular meetings and special meetings.
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Two EO Compliance Committee meetings were held during the
Listing Period to oversee and monitor the Group’'s compliance of
EO and other relevant regulations. Details of the attendance of the

BNEMARESER EHERIBT T MARS
EEREEALENTE N EH R EIARER
OER - RERENEAAREBRRBNEE

members of the EO Compliance Committee meeting are as follows: = N
Members Attendance
8 i =
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chairman) (appointed on 26 February 2014) 2/2
TRl (F/E) (ZEER-FE—MF_H =+, H)
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (appointed on 26 February 2014) 2/2
MEBEC(ZAR-FE—WE_H=+H)
Chung Wai Man (appointed on 11 September 2014) 2/2
BEX(ZAR-ZF—MFENLA+—H)

Accountability and Audit BEREX

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

All Directors acknowledges their responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for each financial year
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report. The Directors continue
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’ auditor, BDO
Limited, in respect of their audit services and non-auditing services
for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$610,000 and
HK$130,000 respectively. In addition, BDO Limited was appointed
by the Company as the reporting accountant for the Listing. The
fee for listing services charged by the auditor of the Company
amounted to HK$600,000 during the year.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control systems. The Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial and operation for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Investors and Shareholders Relations

The Company values communication with the shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Company uses two-way
communication channels to account to shareholders and investors
for the performance of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from
shareholders may be put to the Board through the following
channels to the executive Director:

1. By mail to the Company’s principal place of business at 26th
Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong;

2. By email at investor@elighting.asia.

The Company uses a number of formal communications channel
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated the
key information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders
and investors; and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.
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The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which
at least 20 clear business days’ notice shall be given. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, or in
their absence, the Directors are available to answer shareholders’
questions on the Group’s businesses at the meeting. To comply
with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the management will
ensure the external auditor to attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

All shareholders have statutory rights to call for extraordinary
general meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration
by shareholders. According to article 58 of the articles of association
of the Company, any one or more members holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, he/she
shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s
head office located at 26th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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The Notice shall:

(i) include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(i) be signed by the shareholder concerned and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company'’s shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as
a director of the Company without adjourning the general meeting,
shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the date of
the general meeting appointed for such election.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website (www.elighting.asia) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 27 June 2014. During the Listing Period, Mr. Lam has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Reorganisation and Placing

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 November 2013.
Pursuant to a reorganisation to rationalise the group structure in
preparation for the listing of the issued ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company on the GEM, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The Company’s shares
were listed on GEM on 29 September 2014.

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
26th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The Company's principal activity is investment holding while the
Group is principally engaged in the retail sales distribution of
lighting products and household furniture in Hong Kong. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2015 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 95.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Deed of non-competition

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond and the company through which he holds equity interests
in the Company, namely, Time Prestige Ventures Limited, have
entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company on 11
September 2014. The details of the deed of non-competition have
been disclosed in the Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed the Company that they
had complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
Listing Period. The Board (including the independent non-executive
Directors) has reviewed and confirmed the compliance with the
non-competition undertakings by the controlling shareholders.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group is principally involved in retail business.
The top five customers together accounted for less than 5% of the
Group’s revenue, with none of the top five customer accounting
for a material proportion of the Group’s revenue. The top five
suppliers together accounted for approximately 49.2% of the
Group's purchases and the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 16.3% of the Group’s purchases.

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately HK$48.7
million.

Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (appointed on 26 February 2014)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (appointed on 26 February 2014)
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (appointed on 26 February 2014)
Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Chung Wai Man (appointed on 11 September 2014)

Leung Wai Chuen (appointed on 11 September 2014)
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (appointed on 11 September 2014)

By virtue of article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Chou, will retire and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

By virtue of article 83 of the Articles, Mr. Chung, Mr. Leung, Ms.
Yeung and Mr. Hui Kwok Wing shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, Mr.
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond and Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen, and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of two
years from 11 September 2014, which will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ written notice or
payment in lieu to the other party.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Directors, has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term
of two years from 19 June 2015, which will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ written notice or
payment in lieu to the other party.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and EERFETHAESRARQ RS EM

Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares MEEEE R - BREARG RERERE

and Debentures of the Company or any RN AR

Associated Corporations

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the WRZ-ZZE—FF=FA=+—H ARAEENTE
Directors and chief executive of the Company (the “Chief 1TERAE([EEB/THAE )RARQ Tk E B

Executive”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of [E(F&RFESNLEEEN([FHLEBAEEN])E
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning  XVZ8) #1815 « 8 RINR (D K (B4 3F - 4 A B 1R 1
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as  #H&NMEAEIEHIZEIS2{EIRTE MiETF.2 &L feae
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of $% @ SKBIEX HF N TFIEEBNE RN T LB
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock  EYREZS XA MAT -

Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings were as

follows:
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQNTEBERNETE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
S Bok#EzME HEHE RESIEOL
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond Interest in controlling corporation 210,000,000 52.5%
FRER S REEEE R (Note 1)
(P&ET)
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu Interest in controlling corporation 45,000,000 11.25%
Ecikalba R EEE R (Note 2)
(HMtsE2)
Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen Interest in controlling corporation 36,000,000 9%
("Mr. Chou") R A E (Note 3)
MEBCERE(NEE]D) (M15E3)
Notes: BEE -

(1) These shares are held by Time Prestige Ventures Limited, a company (1) %59 HTime Prestige Ventures Limited(—f& &
wholly-owned by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. FFERREER B ANRR)ES -

(2)  These shares are held by Star Adventure Holdings Limited, a company  (2) %% #%{7 /i Star Adventure Holdings Limited (—f
wholly-owned by Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. HAEEIEEREEANAREE °

(3) These shares are held by Time Palace Holdings Limited, a company  (3) #ZZ &% ATime Palace Holdings Limited(—[E /A
wholly-owned by Mr. Chou. MEERERBEBGORRDIFE ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Required
Standard of Dealings.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2015, to the best of the knowledge of the Directors
and the Chief Executive and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
(other than the Directors and the Chief Executive) in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

FREXFIEENSN R_F—AF=A=1+—
B BMEEERTETHRABRARASEEM
BB ARG - HERO RERLETHES
BRBEESFREGRIIEIS2EREMBEFIER
AR - SRBR LB TREEMNEARNRF R
B X PrE AR s SRR

ETERREEMATRARTRG R
HEAR DR Em R AR
R-Z-—REZA=1—H BEERIBTH
AEFREN - R E RS DB AR RA DR
FFERE  THIALREB(EEREBTHRA
BRI RAD ARG XEBRG EEAREES
R B (17 S 336 1 E T e 2 B R ok 2
M ROARIT -

REQATEERNER

alj

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
] BoRESEME HEHE RESOEOL
Time Prestige Ventures Limited Beneficial Owner 210,000,000 52.5%
BEmEAA
Star Adventure Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 11.25%
BEHEAA
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying (Note 1) Interest of spouse 45,000,000 11.25%
RgEpiz+ (fisE1) (L
Time Palace Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 36,000,000 9%
EnERA
Ms. Chow Kam Yiu (Note 2) Interest of spouse 36,000,000 9%

EREE 2+ (KMiFE2) [

Notes:

(1) Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is the spouse of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. Under the SFO,
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is interested.

(2) Ms. Chow Kam Yiu is the spouse of Mr. Chou. Under the SFO, Ms.

Chow Kam Yu is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Chou is interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, there was no person
or corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives)
who had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”)
and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
11 September 2014 whereby the Board are authorised, at their
absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, to grant options to the Eligible Participant to subscribe for
the shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue upon the date of Listing, being
40,000,000 Shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a
subdivision or a consolidation of such 40,000,000 Shares from time
to time) (the ”“Scheme Limit"). Subject to Shareholders’ approval
in general meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time
to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval by the
Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant options beyond
the Share Option Scheme Limit to eligible participants specifically
identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes
of the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will
result in the limit being exceeded.
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The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any
further grant of options is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting with such eligible participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option at
the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at least
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the share.

As at 31 March 2015, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. Since the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme, no share option has been granted by the
Company.

Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2015 was the Company, or any of its holding companies or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
and the Chief Executives (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares, or underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as otherwise disclosed, no contract of significance to which
the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Retirement Benefits Plans

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31
March 2015 are set out in note 4(j)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during the
Listing Period.

Connected Transactions
Save as otherwise disclosed, there were no significant connected
transactions entered into by the Group for the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed securities

The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 29 September 2014. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities during the Listing Period.
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Compliance Adviser’s Interests

As at 31 March 2015, neither Ample Capital Limited, the
compliance adviser of the Company, nor any of its Directors,
employees or close associates had any interests in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) pursuant to Rule
6A.32 of GEM Listing Rules.

Event after the Reporting Period
On 19 June 2015, Mr. Hui Kwok Wing has been appointed as the
executive Director and chief creative officer of the Company.

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any material
subsequent event after the reporting period and up to the date of
this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 24 to 35. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of the long term objectives.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out in the financial summary on page 96 of this annual
report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2015 have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel: +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

18 M A% BYAT

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
B © +8522218 8288 BEATHETINGR

f5& : +85228152239

KEZH L2518

www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 95, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B % & EMFRk &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong,
19 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZE_—ZE—HAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014

—E-1fF —T—mEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B5E FHET FET

Turnover e 7 80,416 79,158

Cost of sales THE A (35,370) (31,975)

Gross profit ES 45,046 47,183

Other income =N 107 -

Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAY (36,824) (29,559)

Administrative and other expenses THREMFES (20,570) (10,100)

Profit/(Loss) before tax BF A s A (E18) 8 (12,241) 7,524

Income tax expense FriSii 11 (456) (1,667)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive KABHEE ANEHEERG
income for the year attributable to A (EE) REMEE

the owners of the Company Wzs4a =g (12,697) 5,857

Earnings/(Loss) per share BREF,(EE)
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAR R EEE B 12 (3.61) 1.95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

As at 31 March 2015 R=ZE—HF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-FE =— U4
Notes HKS$’'000 HK$'000
Bi5E FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE &R E 14 3,482 1,950
Rental deposits HE®e 16 4,935 4,391
Deferred tax assets ﬁkmlﬁ BE 19 295 488
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 8,712 6,829
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 15 22,361 17,516
Trade and other receivables FE U 208 N E it fE W F 0B 16 6,493 3,451
Tax recoverable A Y [B] § 1B 1,101 649
Cash and bank balances Re NIRRT 22,153 4,087
Total current assets B R EAE 52,108 25,703
Total assets EEHAE 60,820 32,532
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FET 2008 I B b pE (S 2B 17 6,781 7,626
Amount due to a controlling JER — R AR R
shareholder RIH 18 1,242 3,124
Current tax liabilities BIEARR IR B (& 59 681
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 8,082 11,431
Net current assets RBEEFE 44,026 14,272
NET ASSETS EEFE 52,738 21,101
Capital and reserves attributable RAREEANEMNL
to the owners of the Company BRAR R
Share capital A& AR 20 4,000 2
Reserves =R 48,738 21,099
TOTAL EQUITY B 52,738 21,101

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Director

EZE

Director

EZE

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREmEER

2 \ mom
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZE_—ZE—HAF=A=+—HILFE

Share Share Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve  earnings equity
BA  ROEE HttRE REERN  ERAE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
k=3 TET THERT TET TET TET

As at 1 April 2013 R-Z—=FMA—H 2 - - 15,242 15,244
Profit and total comprehensive ET@W&E@

income for the year Wi - = = 5,857 5,857
As at 31 March 2014 and RZZE-MF=/A=+—H

1 April 2014 kZZ-mMEmMA—AH 2 - - 21,099 21,101
Issue of shares during BT

reorganisation 9 17 (@) *- - - - 5
Elimination of share capital ERRE

upon reorganisation R (b) ) - 2 - =
Issue of shares upon placing RIER €T RN (© 1,000 49,000 - - 50,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation )& BEEE A/ 1%

of share premium account BITRI D (d) 3,000 (3,000) - - =
Expenses incurred in BB E

connection with the issue BITRM

of shares upon placing FTEEmMFY - (5,666) - - (5,666)
Loss and total comprehensive  FEEEE2H

income for the year W zs4a%m - - - (12,697)  (12,697)
As at 31 March 2015 NZZE—REF=A=1+—8H 4,000 40,334 2 8,402 52,738

* Represents amount less than HK$1,000 * RRNER,0008 TS 58
Notes: Pt 3

(a)

(b)

On 8 September 2014, the Company allotted and issued 999 shares,
credited as fully paid ordinary shares.

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of shares issued by the Company and the aggregate
nominal value of the issued share capital of subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 8
September 2014.

RZZ-—MFEAANR  AARIE R E K #7999
BRARRIESUR RSB -

REBEMFEEARRCETRNDEELRBER
—T-MEAANRERNEEEETKREHEA
AIEBITIRAEERRE CANESE -

() On 26 September 2014, the Company issued 100,000,000 new shares () RZZT—MNFNAZ+"H  RAFLAERK0.507%
with nominal value of HK$0.01 each for the placing at the offer price JTHY 3 & (B B £ 100,000,000 8% A% EI{E0.01 78 7T
of HK$0.5 each. B AR (7

Pursuant to a written resolution by the shareholders on 11
September 2014, the directors were authorised to allot and issue a
total of 299,999,000 shares by way of capitalisation of the sum of
HK$2,999,990 standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
299,999,000 shares for allotment and issue to the then shareholders
in proportion to their respectively shareholdings.

m;ﬁﬁ%é:@?fmihﬂ+fE%E3@E@%E?&§§

EEEREBARRRGEEREANAERA
29%9%%m%ﬁ$mﬁﬁﬁéﬁ RlEEEA
£ IR EE SR 299,999,000 A% B9 A1 & A AR R 3%
RS A L {910 %% K2 25 77299,999,000 8% B&1D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

m/T\ Iﬁlﬁ/)lb%%

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ_-_Z—hF&=A=+—HILEE

2015 2014
—E-REF —Pa
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REKEITHNRERE
Profit/(Loss) before tax MESRTER] (E518) (12,241) 7,524
Adjustments for: HTYFIEELAE
Depreciation of property, M - WE &
plant and equipment BERITE 1,428 1,191
Loss on disposal of property, BEEWME - BWER
plant and equipment FEREE - 7
Interest income FILEUA (53) -
Operating cash flows before working EEESEBEAIZ
capital changes RERERN (10,866) 8,786
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,845) (5,377)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEHQTAIE&ﬁ’ngFEHﬂﬁAlﬁiﬁm (4,430) (1,490)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FEH RIB I HAth FE S 3R
other payables ) 3G (498) 2,243
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& (Fif) FIBHNES (20,639) 4,162
Income tax paid BRAEH (1,337) (2,280)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE(FrA),
operating activities FEREFE (21,976) 1,882
Cash flows from investing activities RETEFRBHRERE
Increase in time deposit with original maturity JREHARML=MEH A L&Y
over three months TE BRAF RIE N (1,000) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  WENERE (2,910) (992)
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFANRESFESE (3,910) (992)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEFRBHEESRE
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to JE A4S — & 42 IR BR FA
a controlling shareholder O A,/ 38 (1,883) 111
Share issue expenses BITRMH T (5.218) (448)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 FR1S5RIE 50,000 -
Interest received EHFILE 53 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) mMEEBME(FTA)
financing activities REFE 42,952 (337)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #reHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—1F —E—pUE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BR2RBELZEYHLINELE 17,066 553
Cash and cash equivalents at FEzEER
beginning of year HEZEEY 4,087 3,534
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year HRZEHERREZEY 21,153 4,087
Analysis of the balances of cash RERREEZEY
and cash equivalents: HEERDT
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTT4ER 22,153 4,087
Less: Time deposit with original maturity B REHRA=EA N LR
over three months 7EBIFRR (1,000) =
21,153 4,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IIVT\

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ_=%

1.

BB RKRM

—RF=ZA=t-HLFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND THE
REORGANISATION EXERCISE AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

(a)

(b)

Corporate Information

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 29 November 2013 under the Companies
Law. Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office
and principal place of business are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of this annual report.

The Company’s issued shares have been listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 29 September 2014 (the
“Listing"”).

The Group’s principal activity is engaged in the retail sales
distribution of lighting products and household furniture in Hong
Kong.

The reorganisation exercise and basis of

presentation

Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Group in the preparation for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group on 8 September
2014.

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 22 September 2014
("Prospectus”).

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

1.

(b)

Tk B

ARBRRREE

RAEH
ERAZEBRERAR(ARA DR =T —=
Ft—AZTARRBEREHS R REF22
B(—AAR—FF=FEN - BxE RER]D)
ERNSHBEMKLAERRBERAR - A
NEZEMMEREREESE BN MBI ER
RERW AR ER B ELHE

ARAMEHRTROBE T -—TF A
“tABREREEBRAEXSMER AR ([H
P DAIER(TAIZER D £ (T Em D -

AEENTIEZEBRREENERMER R
REMTERDH

EAESRENNEE

REASELSRELTREREMET ZE
MerEl(TE=A])  ARRAN_ZE—TFNA
NEK AR S B R A

BHZHABRAARRBEH R T —TFNA
“ToANBERER(BRERDIES &
CEETYNCIES ol -Gl A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND THE 1. RAEIER s BEHEHK
REORGANISATION EXERCISE AND BASIS OF HRBIELAE )

PRESE NTATION (continued)
(b) ERFERZINEE S

(b) The reorganisation exercise and basis of

presentation (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries have been under common
control of Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) before and after the Reorganisation, there was
a continuation of the risks and benefits to the Controlling
Shareholder and, therefore, the Reorganisation is considered
to be a restructuring of entities and business under common
control. Before and after the Reorganisation, there is also no
change in management of the Group and ultimate owners of the
Group remain the same. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements as set out in this report for the years ended 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 have been prepared by adopting the
merger accounting principles. The consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of changes
in equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows of
the Group for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March
2015 include the results and cash flows of all companies now
comprising the Group, as if the current structure had been in
existence throughout the period of 2014, or since their respective
dates of acquisition or incorporation, where there is a shorter
period. The consolidated statements of financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015 have been
prepared to present the state of affairs of the Group as if the
current structure had been in existence at these dates or since
their respective dates of acquisition or incorporation, whichever is
the shorter period.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective 1

April 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets: Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMBEBIKEIRE

i

([ &-EH

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continuea)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective 1

Aprll 2014 (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding
appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” and when
a gross settlement mechanism is considered equivalent to net
settlement. The amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 - Impairment of
Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-Financial Assets

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) to
those periods in which an impairment loss has been recognised
or reversed, and expand the disclosures where the recoverable
amount of impaired assets or CGUs has been determined
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments are
applied retrospectively and no material impact on these financial
statements.

HK (IFRIC) 21 - Levies

HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability to pay
a levy imposed by government when the activity that triggers
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. The
interpretation has been applied retrospectively.

The adoption of HK (IFRIC) 21 has no impact on these financial
statements as the interpretation is consistent with the Group’s
previous application of its accounting policies on provisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNE BB HREER ([ &8
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) FEEp AR |) )

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) T EMRE M RERB L EIERT

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative
The amendments clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of
financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.

Although the amendments do not require specific changes,
they clarify a number of presentation issues and highlight that
preparers are permitted to tailor the format and the presentation
of the financial statements to their circumstance and the needs
of users.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

(continued)

i

2. FRNB BB RELEDN ([ HEBH
BHELER ) @
(b) TEME M RERBIIE LIERT
EBMBEREER @
EBETTERE1R 28] — K ETE

(%)

The key areas addressed by the changes are as follows:

Materiality: an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate
information in a manner that obscures useful information.
An entity need not provide disclosures if the information is
not material;

Disaggregation and subtotals: the amendments clarify what
additional subtotals are acceptable and how they should be
presented;

Notes: an entity is not required to present the notes
to the financial statements in a particular order, and
management should tailor the structure of their notes to
their circumstances and the needs of their users;

Accounting policies: how to identify a significant
accounting policy that should be disclosed;

Other comprehensive income from equity accounted
investments: other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures should be separated into the share of items
that will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss and
those that will not.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRAERBMBmEER(FEHY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continuea) HHREER ) @
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) T EMRE M RERB L EIERT
are not yet effective (continued) EBNBHEEN @
HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments BRI KR EER K (2014
F)-e@mIA
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and BAEUBREENFIORSIECHEED
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held NAERNFRTE REBERNEEEEMB
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order M ANEAS YIRS mmER T A (EBEZ
to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test) and ) UEREEARESRNANKREEAY
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are NAERAEERSNNENEETE(ALHR
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount SRR - —RIZEHK AT 2 - W
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are EREBEANENATERRDNANRE
generally measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that MARHESREE  AFEANESRE
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured BAHNES T AENEAFTEFAEMEEA
at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is both WAFHE o BB A] AV 5 FERR B 1B R Al 3
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the SHAVIRE QIR AT EFAEMEEBAGT
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at EVHBHEEENRALA - TEEMER
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are not EIRAR T B AR A EFF AR E -

held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all BB GRS AR B o% mt W IE IR AT EET A
financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred BENESREEMAFTHIEREIERE
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting B HRREESHERE9NNEELE
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk EBE AR F A — RE RS EHETE - AR
management activities in financial statements. ERRVERRAT T RMERREIEE
7 o
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and BBV BRELENEIRERE BT ER
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS FEIVREAHECRBENER  DERAE
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the BT EREBEEAEAABENAEBENSE
amount of change in fair value attributable to change in credit MEEmSs  FZBENEERREEMmS
risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive income AR BEEZHSEDNAMEEBASF
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. R BRIFLBEELSIERASETER o 1t
In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for N - B REEAERFR B S E
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. RIE39 BT EERcMEERERAE
HIFRTE °

ERAKEZRARLR —T-AFER @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNE BB HREER ([ FEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) FeEp AR |)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) TEME M RERBIIE LIERT

N

are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is
satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the qualitative
and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and the directors
anticipated that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c)

Amended GEM Listing Rules relating to the
presentation and disclosures of financial
statements

The amended GEM Listing Rules in relation to the presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, including the
amendments with reference to the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622 (the New Ordinance), will first apply to the Company in
its financial year ending on 31 March 2016.

The directors consider that there will be no impact on the
Group's financial position or performance. However the
amendments to GEM Listing Rules would have impacts on
the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listings Rules”).

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset
has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
and overhaul costs, is charged to profit or loss in the year in
which it is incurred. In situations where it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the subsequent expenditure
will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea

(c) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

4 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinues)

(d)

(e)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding lease commitment is shown
as a liability. Lease payments are analysed between capital and
interest. The interest element is charged to profit or loss over
the period of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a
constant proportion of the lease liability. The capital element
reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integrated
part of the total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBZ_-F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

()

(9)

Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of financial assets under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

An impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBZ_-F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable cost incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables and amount due to a controlling shareholder
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinvey 4. BRETTHE @
(h) Income tax (h) Fri8%

Income taxes for the period comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in
which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBZ_-F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea

(i)

()

(k)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue
can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customers, provided that the Group retains neither
managerial involvement to the degree associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
The group entities incorporated in Hong Kong manage a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF scheme. The Group
makes contributions based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries funded by the Group and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.
(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinues)

(k) Foreign currencies (continued)

()]

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of
foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group's net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBZ_-F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

@

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. ERESTHERESTTIEERE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

(a) Impairment on non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for the non-financial asset at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial asset is tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management estimates the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(b) Provision for inventories

The Group reviews and identifies, at the end of each financial
period, provision for inventories (if any) based on recent sales
performance, management experience with characteristic
customer purchase behavior and assessment of the product’s
alignment with current market trend. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest market prices and current market conditions.
The assessment of the provision amount required involves
management judgment and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of
inventories and provision charge/written back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed.

(c) Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the depreciation amount of property,
plant and equipment based on the estimated useful life, which
are reviewed at each reporting period end. The principal
assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the useful life and
residual value include those related to the mode of operations,
government regulations and scrap value of property, plant and
equipment in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(d)

Taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions, and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Where the final tax outcome of these transactions
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits, which affects the probability of utilisation and tax
rate to be used in the calculations.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
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6. »HAK

(a) Business segment (a) ¥ 75
The Group determines its operating segments based on the AEBIRFBLIERRKEANUELREMER
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are EMERZBRERTFELE DL - REBF
used to make strategic decisions. The Group principally operates BB —(EER DI - BIREBIEEBE
in one business segment, which is the sale of lighting products mEREA -
and household furniture in Hong Kong.
(b) Geographic information (b) HWEEHR
Since the Group solely operates business in Hong Kong and all of AR AEEEERBSKEEGEAEEMAE
the non-current assets of the Group are located in Hong Kong, ERBEEHURES WA ERBEET B
no geographical segment information is presented in accordance TEMELER|FESIR[ KL N E | 2FHEHEE
with HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. e
(c) Information about major customers () BEXEEFNEHR
The Group had no customer from whom the revenue raised e SETR e s L N S E T N S = B
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total WE10%MES -
revenue during the year.
7. TURNOVER 7. EX5
2015 2014
—E—-ffF —=—UFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales of goods HEE®m 80,416 79,158

ERAKEZERARDLT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 8. M¥iANER, (BE)
Profit/(Loss) before tax is arrived at after charging: MALATET (E8) B -
2015 2014
—E—hF —Pa
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHT
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN B & 610 200
Costs of inventories recognised as HRAERYNFERA
expenses 31,566 29,144
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMREOITE
equipment 1,428 1,191
Lease payments under operating leases: &&MHEE 2 HER
Minimum lease payments RIEA SRR 23,885 18,254
Contingent rent FAMEE 702 252
24,587 18,506
Listing expenses (including professional +FHAX(BEEEERA KL
fees and other expenses) HEFHE) 13,713 2,758
Less: Amount capitalised o BAME (5.666) -
8,047 2,758
Loss on disposal of property, plantand BEEWHE - WE X
equipment FEREE - 7
Staff costs (note 9) 8 TR (KI7E9) 15,495 12,098
9. STAFF COSTS 9. BIMAK
2015 2014
—E-hHE —POE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Employee costs (including directors) EERAN(BIEES)
comprise: BIE
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmETR 14,887 11,631
Contributions to retirement benefits BRRENFH B
schemes 608 467
15,495 12,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 10. EZF MR EEREHMAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEHM
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to each EX BN TN EENHMAENAT
of the directors is as follows:
Executive directors: HITESE
The emoluments paid to executive directors during the year are as REAFEE XN TFRITEFHFMAT :
follows:

Contributions
Salaries and  to retirement

other benefits
Fees benefits schemes Total
&K EHREF
we Hitn g7 BELE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TERr
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-E-1F
ZRA=t-HL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond FER - 1,300 18 1,318
Hue Kwok Chiu HE 8 - 284 10 294
Chou Hing Yan Stephen e - 481 18 499
- 2,065 46 2,111
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_E-m&§
=RA=t-HL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond el - 1,200 15 1,215
Hue Kwok Chiu SFES - - - -
Chou Hing Yan Stephen hEL - 444 15 459
- 1,644 30 1,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year are as follows:

10. EEFHFMM R A BRSHMNA T @)

(a) EEHM
BIHTES

RAFEEXN FTRIIFRTEZNEDM

™

Contributions
Salaries  to retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits schemes Total

H&R BHREF
e HtEF RE L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ-Z-1%
=B=t+—-AH1Lt

Chung Wai Man (i) ERE) - 67 - 67
Leung Wai Chuen (i) 2ER() - 67 - 67
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (i) HERE() - 67 - 67
- 201 - 201

(i)  The independent non-executive directors, Chung Wai
Man, Leung Wai Chuen and Yeung Mo Sheung Ann were
appointed on 11 September 2014.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2014: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note 10(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2014: three) individuals
are as follows:

(i) RZZ—MFAA+—B BEX R
BREGRBEZERBIUIFNTE

=Eo
(b) EEBSHMAL

AEENTRESHFMALH  EFRER
ARREBR(ZT—WF : MA) - bfINH
B REE10(a) FIEHHBYEE < S =R AL
—T-WE  ZR)NEFEMOT

2015 2014

—E-HE —ZT—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits Fe MEMBEF 1,518 1,644
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREF B R

schemes 53 45

1,571 1,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 10. ESFMREEESFMALT@
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EBBESHMA LA
Emoluments paid to each of above individuals for each of the FMNFATHERN LIMRATEHBLOT -

year fell within the following band:

2015 2014

—E-RF —F—E

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

ATHEE ATHIEE

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 EE#711,000,000 3 3
During the year ended 31 March 2015, no emoluments were RBEE_T-—RAF=ZA=+—HLFE &
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the five EBIRARARR ZEEN AR KD 5
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining ATZNER - EAMAKREBR SR INA

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil). None AEERZBSHABMBRHEE( T —NF :
of the directors nor the five highest paid individuals has waived )  NEFERNEZNABZ=HATITER

or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil). EZRIENET M FMH LT (P 4F -

) -
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FrEHiR X
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated statements of RNGA2EREETHNAEEHEYES
comprehensive income represents:

2015 2014

—F-EH%F —T-mF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax B EATTE — BB RS T

- charge for the year —KFEXH 298 1,893

— over provision in respect of prior year — —3B{F FEBREREME (35) (39)
263 1,854

Deferred tax (note 19) EEFE(KMIEE19)

— charge/(credit) for the year —REEFLZHE GEM) 193 (187)
Income tax expense FriSfiA X 456 1,667
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the EAFER AR HBEEE Z GetERER SR

estimated assessable profits for the year. 16.5%(—Z—P04 : 16.5%)51&

ERAKEZRARLR —T-AFER @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinuea 11. FrigHi B sz
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) FEATEHE Y T HEE 2SR TRE BT R
before tax per the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as w®HL (R EERMT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-hEF —T—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR () (12,241) 7,524
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate AT FT16.5% (= ZF—P04F :
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) 16.5% )5t E 2 1A (2,020) 1,241
Tax effect of expenses not deductible LI b
for tax purposes Mg e 1,468 455
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERAEINFREREERE
differences not recognised M E 195 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERT ISR RS2 857 -
Income not subject to tax BIERT Z M 9 -
Over-provision in respect of prior year  iB1F /S HBEE A (35) (39)
Others Hith - 10
Income tax expense FrSHif 456 1,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the

12. 8REBH(&18)
AR FHRE AR SIREARF] (B518) IR

owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEUEE
2015 2014
—E-HE —TlE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings/(Loss) BF,(FE)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEER(F8) (12,697) 5,857
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—IF
‘000 ‘000
T TFix
Number of shares RO A
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FistEEREALEF,(EiE8) 2
shares for the purpose of calculating AR, EE (Fista)
basic earnings/(loss) per share (note a) 351,233 300,000

Notes:

(a)

The number of shares used for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings/(loss) per share has been retrospectively adjusted for
the issue of shares during the reorganisation and capitalisation
issued as disclosed in note 20 as if the shares had been in issue
throughout the entire reporting periods.

The calculation of the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year ended 31 March 2015 has been
adjusted for the effect of the placing of 100,000,000 new shares
on 26 September 2014.

As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, the diluted earnings/(loss)
per share for the years are the same as basic earnings/(loss) per
share.

13. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the year,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of reporting period
(2014 Nil).

MEE

(a)

ARt EESRERRTN, (BB HRNHEE
E LM 20 TR B8 1) S AR BT TR S B ANME
BATMEHIE AR - N E RN N EE
WEMME BT -

REBE-_ZT-AF=A=+—HILFED%

TR INEFOHHFEE R —F— 1

F A =475 BB 100,000,000 A% #7 1% 5
FEMELRE -

HREZ_ZE—RAFLK=_FT—NF=A
“+—RUEFETEBTETLEN BT
BEsERT,(BE) BEREREF (&
)R e

13. k2

EFeTRERAFEIRMNEMBRS - M BERSE
HIRAE B AR EER RN EARE (=T —1
FoE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 1% - MERZME
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
xE
HEWEEE EERZE wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Cost 2N
As at 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWmA—H 3,971 1,152 5,123
Additions at cost RN AN 651 341 992
Disposal RE (323) - (323)
As at 31 March 2014 RZE—F
=A=+—H 4,299 1,493 5,792
Additions at cost AR NI A0 2,466 494 2,960
Disposal RE (50) - (50)
As at 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF
=A=+—8 6,715 1,987 8,702
Accumulated depreciation At E
As at 1 April 2013 R-E—=FPAH—H 2,239 664 2,903
Depreciation e 1,009 182 1,191
Written back on disposal B RO (252) - (252)
As at 31 March 2014 RZE—NF
=A=+—H 2,996 846 3,842
Depreciation e 1,209 219 1,428
Written back on disposal & & (o) (50) - (50)
As at 31 March 2015 RZE—HF
=—A=+—8 4,155 1,065 5,220
Net book value BREFE
As at 31 March 2014 MN-_ZE—F
=A=+—8 1,303 647 1,950
As at 31 March 2015 RZE—HF
=HA=+—H 2,560 922 3,482

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continuesy ~ 14. Y3 - [HE R 3B 1E @)

The following is an analysis of the cost of property, plant and NTAFKEEZATERBNAERNDE  BEX
equipment which was fully depreciated but still in use at end of year. RAER AN DAT o
Cost
R
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 March 2014 RZE-—NF=A=+—H 2,173
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 3,288
15. INVENTORIES 15. 7 &
2015 2014
—E-fHE —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Merchandise B 21,104 16,728
Goods in transit TEEY 1,257 788
22,361 17,516
16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. FEUWFRIE K HAth B FRIE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables FE Y I8 683 775
Deposits and other receivables e R HAMEIKFIE 8,317 5,922
Prepayments TEfTRIE 2,428 1,145
Total =18 11,428 7,842
Less: non-current — rental deposits A FERIE - ERS (4,935) (4,391)
6,493 3,451
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days from invoice HEEMHNTHEERREZ ALK -

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors with the
following ageing analysis, based on invoice dates:

16. FEU R I8 K E b FE U FR T8 ()
SRR B L FE U B Y FE M B R R
H BB AT

2015 2014

—E-1fF —T—mEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FExT

Within 30 days 30KIA 428 416
31 to 90 days 31E90K 189 166
91 to 180 days 91E180K 41 83
Over 180 days HiE 180K 25 110
683 775

As the end of year, the Group reviews trade and other receivables
for evidence of impairment on both individual and collective basis.
Based on the impairment assessment, no impairment loss has been
recognised as at 31 March 2014 and 2015. The Group did not hold
any collateral as security or other credit enhancement over the trade
receivables.

The ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
are as follows:

AR AREBIRE R K 5 58 F AR B R GRTE K
H B GRIELER A S HIRBE o BRERERT
F R NNFEE-_T-RAFZA=t+—HIE

RTMREEE - REBL ERERFBEFET
K 1R R E A IR IR sk (S B 1L AR IE 1 -

EEHERREZ B FIRR RGN T

2015 2014

—E-RfF —T—UF

HK$°000 HK$ 000

FaExT FHET

Neither past due nor impaired I e A slR B 428 416
Past due but not impaired: B A RRE

Less than 90 days DHA90K 230 220

91 to 180 days 91£180K 3 31

Over 180 days BB 180K 22 108

255 359

683 775

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record of
credit with the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17. B RIE R H B FRIR
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade payables FETRIE 2,750 4,597
Receipt in advance TEWCRRIE 1.215 723
Accruals and other payables FERTRRIE K E At JE (< 7RIE 2,816 2,306
6,781 7,626
Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally ERRIBATR - NEBR—RENF30E180K
granted credit terms ranging from 30 to 180 days. ZIZEH] -
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the SAFER B R EMEN RIBHEMNIBREER
following ageing analysis, based on invoice dates: HEARIBRER DTN T -
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Within 30 days 30K 1,341 2,712
31 to 60 days 31E60K 283 409
61 to 90 days 61290k 862 302
Over 90 days HBiBI0K 264 1,174
2,750 4,597
18. AMOUNT DUE TO A CONTROLLING 18. Bt — BRI R AKIE
SHAREHOLDER
The amount due to a controlling shareholder is unsecured, interest FEft— B AR IR SR IE AR - R B R/AEESK
free and repayable on demand. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

19.

20.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the deferred tax assets during the year are as
follows:

19.

IEFER IR

BERRAEERAFEZEEHOT

Decelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
RRBIEINE BIEE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
As at 1 April 2013 RZE—=%F
mH—H 229 72 301
Credit to profit or loss (note 11) FAEZR(FIEE11) 93 94 187
As at 31 March 2014 R_T—m4
=A=+—8 322 166 488
Charge to profit or loss (note 11) Ba B (FsE11) (27) (166) (193)
As at 31 March 2015 RZZ—h%F
=A=+—H 295 - 295
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: AT IR R IR & B i R AR
2015 2014
—ZE-FEF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deductible temporary differences AT ER 1,052 -
Unused tax losses REVABEEE 5,189 -
6,241 -
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the deductible B A SR BE TR SR AR FI 2ROE + 0 S SR A N R T

temporary differences and unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Group

The share capital as at 31 March 2014 represents the combined share
capital of the companies now comprising the Group after elimination
of inter-company investments.

The share capital as at 31 March 2015 represents the Company’s
issued share capital after elimination of the Company's investment
in subsidiaries upon the completion of Group’s reorganisation on 8
September 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. SHARE CAPITAL (continued

A RAR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

20. BN &)

The Company b YN
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
Note ordinary shares shares
BiisE ZEBEREE ERREE
HK$°000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as ~ ERE{E0.01E T2
at date of incorporation, Rl Nl AvA
31 March 2014, 1 April 2014 and HE  —T—mWFE=H
31 March 2015 =t+—R8 -—Z—mF
MA—BE-Z—HF
=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
As at 29 November 2013 (date of RZE—=4F
incorporation) +—AZ=+hAH
(FEMAKZ B ER) (a) 1 -
As at 31 March 2014 and RZE—NF=A
1 April 2014 =ft—HEK
—E—-OFmMA—H 1 *—
Issue of shares during reorganisation B4 HBRS BT T AR (b) 999 *—
Issue of shares upon placing BIERERITHR G, (c) 100,000,000 1,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation of B mEREAN R
share premium account BTG (d) 299,999,000 3,000
As at 31 March 2015 RZEBE—RAF=A=+—H 400,000,000 4,000

* Represents amount less than HK$1,000

* RIRER,000/8 TS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

20. SHARE CAPITAL (continued

The Company (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 29 November 2013, the Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
with an authorised share capital of HK$10,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01 each.

At the time of its incorporation, the total number of issued
shares of the Company was one share.

On 8 September 2014, the Company allotted and issued 999
shares, credit as fully paid ordinary shares.

On 26 September 2014, the Company issued 100,000,000 new
shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 each for the placing at the
offer price of HK$0.50 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution by the shareholders on 11
September 2014, the directors were authorised to allot and
issue a total of 299,999,000 shares by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$2,999,990 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company by applying such sum in
paying up in full at par 299,999,000 shares for allotment and
issue to the then shareholders in proportion to their respectively
shareholdings.

All new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all respects
with the then existing shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

21. RESERVES 21. &t
Group EEE
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year AEEBRNFRRBEESNFBHNGEERETE
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Moo
Share premium IR E
The share premium account of the Group represents the premium REB 7 RIDHEBRRR S EBRITIRMAEHD
arising from the issuance of shares at premium. g e
Company ¥ /N

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
& 105 E ZitBE aFt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTERT FET
As at 29 November 2013 R-IE—=4F
(date of incorporation) +—AZ=+NH8
(FEfAKIZ B ER) - - -
Loss and total comprehensive income  EiAETE &2 M
for the period I zs 4858 - (2,758) (2,758)
As at 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R=-Z—UFE=A
=t+—HRZZE—0EF
rmmA—H - (2,758) (2,758)
Issue of shares upon placing WIEREHITHRG
(note 20(c)) (F3£20 (0)) 49,000 - 49,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation of B mERE b
share premium account (note 20(d))  Z£{TRIBAD (FFEE20(d)) (3,000) - (3,000)
Expenses incurred in connection with iR i & 2 17A% (7
the issue of shares upon placing FEAMRAX (5,666) - (5,666)
Loss and total comprehensive income S RAEE &2 EINE A5
for the year - (7,988) (7,988)
As at 31 March 2015 R-_ZE—h%F
—A=+—H 40,334 (10,746) 29,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

22. LEASE 22. 78S

Operating leases - lessee

The Group leases various offices, retail shops and warehouses under
non-cancellable lease agreements. The lease agreements are between
one and three years, and majority of lease arrangements are renewable
at the end of the lease period with either pre-set increment rate or
market rate to be agreed with landlords.

The operating leases of certain retail shops also call for additional
rentals, which will be based on a certain percentage of revenue
of the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the respective rental agreements.
As the future revenue of these retail shops could not be accurately
determined as at the end of the year, the relevant contingent rentals
have not been included.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of offices, retail shops and warehouses are as
follows:

HEHE -ABAA

AEERBETTRHBEHEREERETHAE - T
EERIAEE - ZEHERERP—E=F K&
DB L P AT B A IR IR TR 48 I LE R R L 5

THENTISLE T IASEE

ETZEERNCEEEREREIMEE - BRI
%H%*E%E%ﬁf’ﬁﬁumﬁﬂE’Jﬂ%%ﬁ&ﬂﬂi&ﬂﬂﬁ%%
BREN—EBD - ARZETHEEFHR
%H&E?ﬁiiﬂ’éi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm B BT AR

BETRESEENERNAE  TEEHLE
BXNARRKEESRIBEELT

2015 2014

—E-IF —ET—mF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Not later than one year —FR 18,448 17,758
Later than one year and not later than ~ —5#& &K HERN

five years 13,668 11,135

32,116 28,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23.BEERS
Other than those balances of related party as disclosed elsewhere in MRER A B RS E E b 20 P il 25 B Bt 77 45 8400 - AN
the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following EENBE_E-—hER-_ZT--NE=A=1+—H
material transactions with its related parties during the year ended 31 IFFEEANLEREE T ET N EARALS

March 2014 and 2015.

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEAEZEHMN
Key management includes directors and senior managements. The FEERECREEERERERASR - BEXfIE
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee NETEEEAENEERSHMUOT :
services is shown below:
2015 2014
—E2-HF —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e RAMET 4,262 3,266
Contributions to retirement IRIREAIET B
benefits schemes 114 82
4,376 3,348

ERAKEZRARLR —T-AFER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

24. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
Summarised in the following table are the carrying amounts not
measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, and amounts due to a
controlling shareholder. Due to their short term nature, the carrying
value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables approximates fair value, and accordingly no
disclosure of the fair values of these items is presented.

YL

24, BERE s ERMEEREHEAE

RTRBANEAENARAFEEAERFES R
ReFEY  BUGIRMEMBRYGIR - BHRA
N EL A FEAN SR RN — R R FIE - ERE
MEEENE BeRkBReSEY  BRFERE
Mo FEM IR K e (N SRR SR EE R NP EERE
M%EEA RN FEEZZ2FARERE -

2015 2014
—E-EE —E-MF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables: B EW A
Trade and other receivables FEUFRIA K H Ath FE Y 5k IE 9,000 6,696
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHH 22,153 4,087
31,153 10,783
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RBER AT ENSRIBE ¢
Trade and other payables JE A5 R TE I LA A~ R IE 5,566 6,903
Amount due to a controlling JEAS — BRI PR AR R
shareholder 1,242 3,124
6,808 10,027

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ=—Z—HAF=A=+—HLEFE

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: including
foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of
the Euro (“EUR"), United States dollar (“USD"”) and Renminibi
("RMB") against HK$.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, management considers that there is
no significant foreign currency risk between these two currencies
to the Group.

The Group's trade payables denominated in EUR and RMB are
in insignificant amount at the end of each of reporting periods.
The directors are of the opinion that the volatility of the Group's
profits against change in exchange rate of EUR and RMB
would not be significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

25. B R fe B 1
$%@E’]¥a"%7¥<§%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬁ D BIRSMER R -

mébﬁ%ﬂ[ﬂ °$$@E’Jﬂ§mﬂ‘& b2

&rﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ HHERTS WS RKEERKE
Y BESBEUBRAMERNETERTZE -

(a) MEEJE B

REBETETRIINEHENRERZ S
A S R B P Y LR - AN B3RS
WESMNELHEE - R AREEEES
EFINERBEENEFTERZEBEIMEKR
SN LR

AEEFEAIBT(TBL]) « Ex([E
T RARE(TARE]) B THINE R B)
[ o

mAB TR EEERRTMER
B EAAREBEREAINERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk

(c)

Credit risk includes risks resulting from counter party default and
risks of concentration. The Group has no significant credit risk
as most of the retail sales are made in cash or by credit cards. In
respect of sales on credit, the Group trades on credit only with
corporate customers who have an established trading history
with the Group. The Group has policies in place for the control
and monitoring of relevant credit risks. These credit evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. As at 31 March
2015, the trade receivables from the five largest debtors
represented 42% (2014: 32%) of the total trade receivables
respectively, while the largest debtor represented 20% (2014:
7%) of the total trade receivables respectively. The directors are
of the opinion that the Group does not have significant credit
risks because the Group mainly trades with customers who have
established trading history with the Group. The exposure to
credit risk is closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risks on rental deposits are considered to be low as
they can be recovered by offsetting against the rental payments.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are reputable and creditworthy banks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Group
is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and
other payables and amounts due to a Controlling Shareholder,
and also in respect of its cash flow management. The cash
management of all operating entities is centralised, including the
raising of funds to cover expected cash demands. The Group's
objective is to maintain sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s financial liabilities
will be due for settlement either on demand or within one year.
The liquidity policies have been consistently applied by the Group
and are considered effective in managing the liquidity risks.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HBZ_-F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value
The fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as
at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were not materially different from
their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short term
maturity of these financial instruments.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and
to support the Group's stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of
the Group, to ensure optimal shareholder returns.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-
equity ratio. For this purpose, net debt includes borrowing less cash
and bank balances while equity comprises share capital and reserves.

25.

26.

—HF=A=t+—-HAILLFE

B R EE @

(d) 2¥E
R-E—HAFR-_ZT-—NFEF=ZA=1+—8 "
AEBZzemEERABZ ATEELER
BEYESAZE  WITHRZSERIER
Bes B HR ok B e HA R B B o

EXEREE

ARE 2 AAEE B RIREAEEOHELE
DSBS HR B9 A H A I 2 AR B R 26
BREBEARBEEIRDERRARES BR
B R R M) -

REBBELERRTRERELEAER  ARE
BAEEZAREGHTE - NEREERERRE
o

REEU S B ALREREREANEE - Lt
ms - ﬁr%ﬁ@ﬁ% FRIRE RERTTHES - s
BIERA R

The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows: NEREABEE OB EESLERDT ¢

2015 2014

=F-HF —FT-mF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHET FHT
Net Debt HEIE (22,153) (4,087)
Equity g 52,738 21,101
Debt to equity ratio BEERLLE (42%) (19%)

ERAKEZRARLR —T-AFER @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BA %R MiaE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

27. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 27. A ) B # AR SR BT 2

COMPANY
2015 2014
=F-1F —TmF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
{55 FET T
Investments in subsidiaries REB A RIRRE *_ *_
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUC B BN T IE (a) 16,227 2,758
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTER 17,361 -
Total assets BEHBE 33,588 2,758
Share capital R 4,000 -
Reserves (G (b) 29,588 2,758
TOTAL EQUITY RS 33,588 2,758
*  Represents amount less than HK$ 1,000 * RAVER,0008 TSR
Notes: (TE
(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free (@) FEWMEBAFIZEAEET R NEREE
and repayable on demand. SKIEE -
(b)  The movement of Company’s reserves has been disclosed in note (b)y ZARTEENEBSRBENGASPTERERNE
21 to the consolidated financial statements. 21

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to reporting period on 13 May 2015, the Company
announced that the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with a vendor to acquire 100% share capital of Top
Investor Global Limited and its subsidiaries (together collectively
referred as “Target Group”) (the “Acquisition”). The consideration will
be satisfied by the issue of convertible bonds of the Company with a
principal amount of HK$35,725,000. The consideration is subject to
the profit guarantee of Target Group for the year ending 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2016. The Target Group is principally engaged
in wholesale of tableware and giftware worldwide and a retail
business of tableware and giftware in Hong Kong. The Acquisition has
been completed on 4 June 2015, before the date of this report, and
the Company issued convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$10,717,000 in connection with the Acquisition on the
same day. The convertible bonds will be matured in 2018.

Because the Acquisition effected shortly before the date of approval of
the consolidated financial statements, it is not practicable to disclose
further details about the Acquisition at the date of this report. The
nature and financial effect of the Acquisition have been set out in
announcements of the Company dated on 13 May 2015, 21 May
2015 and 4 June 2015.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 are as
follows:

28.

29.

REHRREIE

RBEHEN _T—AERAA+T=H  KAFAH
REEDEE B Z R ARETop Investor
Global Limited & E BB A 81100 % iz AR ek (4278
AIEEEE]D(TKREBEE]) - AREBETAS
#R%E /35,725,000 T 2 T MR EHRIEARE -
REBETFEEEEEE S HFER_T—~F
+ZA=+—HILLFERNEFIRE - BEIEEEXE
RENBEZAREREH AL RN EBNERE
AEREMNTE - WEEBEER -_Z—AF AN
B(ARAEBAERMAARERRBRKESE
BEITAREFEA10,717,0008 TR A IR ESH © %
AR E AR 2018 F 28] -

B R FIRNAR A M SRR ALE B HI R AR A&
M BREAEWRENE - SFBEBNIAT - IR
BEBEOEEMUBZECHHERNARF BHA
—E-hAFAA+=H ZZE—RFREA=-+—H
MZZE-—RFRNANAZAE -

LN
AEER-—FE—RE=F=1+— B2 WB LTS
T

Attributable
Place and date of equity interest
incorporation/ Issued and fully held by the Principal activities
establishment paid share capital Group and place of
Name Eali vy BETRER FEEMIBAER  operation
£ P332 % B A R iR A ER FEEBREFNE
Top Triumph Global Limited British Virgin Us$1 100% direct Investment holding
Islands (“BVI"), (E 100% & # REEK
20 November 2013
EBRUES
((RBRZES]) -
—T-=F
+—A=+H
Central United Global Limited BVI, Us$100 100% indirect Investment holding
18 November 2010 1003%7T 100% RERR
EBELHS
—E-FF
+—HA+N\R

ERAKEZRARLR —T-AFER @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B #5 SRR M 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ—Z—HAF=A=+—HILFE

29. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (ontinuea)

29. M B A B 15 @)

Attributable
Place and date of equity interest
incorporation/ Issued and fully held by the Principal activities
establishment paid share capital Group and place of
Name By BEITRER AEBFHFAERN  operation
£ L33 % B HR B R A ES TEXBREFME
Elegant Chain Development BVI, Us$140 100% indirect Investment holding
Limited 8 August 2008 140%7T 100% 5 REER
EBRLHS
—ETNFNANR
Central Sky Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
RARERERAR 24 October 2003 10%7T 100%E# in Hong Kong
BE ZTT=F REBTERHER
+A=+mA
E Lighting Group Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
4 January 2011 10,0007 100% &% and household furniture
"E ZE——F in Hong Kong
—AmA NEBTERHEMNIFA
Element Lighting Design Limited Hong Kong, HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
BB ARAT 11 May 2005 10%7T 100%fE% and household furniture
/E ZETHEF in Hong Kong
TA+—H REETERMERRKA
Good Harvest Surplus Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
ELRERNA 20 May 2011 18T 100% and household furniture
"E 2T ——F in Hong Kong
AA=+AH REBTERMERRKEA
RS Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
23 February 2009 10,0007%7C 100%f5% and household furniture
BB ZETNF in Hong Kong
—A=+=H NEBZERHEMNIFA
228 Inc Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
6 November 2013 10,0007 7T 100% 8% in Hong Kong
F& =% REBTERHER
+—RAH
Culture Art Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
XEHRAT 6 October 2014 18T 100% 5 and household furniture
BE ZT-F in Hong Kong
+ARA REBTERMERRKA

@ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 53R & i 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2015 B@Z—ZF—AF=A=+—HILFE

29. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29. ff B A RFF1E @)

Attributable
Place and date of equity interest
incorporation/ Issued and fully held by the Principal activities
establishment paid share capital Group and place of
Name Bl BEITRER AEBFHFAERN  operation
£ Bz I B 8 AR R AES IBXBRERNE
Major Will Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
6 October 2014 187 100%E# and household furniture
BE _T-0F in Hong Kong
+HARA REBTEBMERRKA
ELG Operations Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Sourcing of lighting products
ERAKELEERAA 14 October 2014 BT 100% 8% and household furniture
BB ZT-0F REEHEMNIRE
TA+mA
ELG Management Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Provision of management
ERAKEERERAR 14 October 2014 AT 100%5# services
BB ZT—DF REEERYE
+A+EA
Urban Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
26 November 2014 17T 100%E# and household furniture
BE _T-0NF in Hong Kong
+—HA=+5H REETERHERRKA
Urban Urban Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
26 November 2014 1787T 100%E# and household furniture
/E 2T -NF in Hong Kong
+—A=+7H REBTEBMHERRKEA
Real Luck Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
1 December 2014 13T 100% % and household furniture
BB ZE-NF in Hong Kong
+=A—H REBTEBMERRKA

Note: None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

30. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2015.

30.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
R

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1+—RHLEE

2015 2014 2013
—E-h1fF —T—mEF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
OPERATING RESULT R
Turnover BETE 80,416 79,158 68,779
Cost of sales SHERK A (35,370) (31,975) (28,865)
Gross profit ER 45,046 47,183 39,914
Other income Hab U A 107 - -
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEFEY (36,824) (29,559) (24,031)
Administrative and other expenses  fTH R H it (20,570) (10,100) (5,261)
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRBLATRR(BE) (12,241) 7,524 10,622
Income tax expense FriSHiF X (456) (1,667) (1,567)
Profit/(Loss) and total RAOTEEAEN
comprehensive income for FEREF (BB R
the year attributable to Hih2E K RAEE
the owners of the Company (12,697) 5,857 9,055
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2015 2014 2013
—E-EHF —E—F ZE—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEERE 60,820 32,532 23,865
Total liabilities afERE (8,082) (11,431) (8,621)
Net assets EEFE 52,738 21,101 15,244
Equity attributable to the owners QA THEE A
of the Company EihfER 52,738 21,101 15,244
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